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A History of Mooreland Baptist Church

Angust 15, 2004

This record of Moorelund Baptist Church is necessarily incomplete and
in some instances may be inaccurnte. As many of you know, in the fire that
destroved the home of Brother Jack Page some years ago, the church book,
containing all records to that date, was lost in the fire. Consequently, the datn
herein contained ts largely a matter of memory and results of inguiries and is
subject to error.

Often, ns history records, good things come into heing becanse of bad
anes. 5o, the bad roads of the tum of the twentieth eentury had a large place in
the establishment of Mooreland.

In the year of 1902, a few Baptists in the Red Hill Community got
together to discuss the feasibility of establishing a church. Hardware was about
four miles away, with roads so bad that it required about an hour and a halfl of
travel, and Mount Ed was even farther awny over equally bad roads, Travel was
by horse drawn vehicles, and in bad weather horseback was frequently the anly
practical means of transportation. In winter months, this meant that the children
and many older people were unable to attend Sunday School with any degree of
regularity. These conditions prompied the meeting referred to above, and the
outcome of this meeting was a decision 1o organize 0 Baptist Church in the
CAMTITHETIEY.

The charter members, as | remember, were Mr. and Mrs, John K.
Forrer, Mr. and Mrs. 5. M. Page, Nicholas M. Page, Mr. and Mrs, H. C. Phillips,
Miss Berne Phillips, Miss Pearl Phillips, Mr, and Mrs. Henry Sutherland, Mr. B.
B. Payne, Mr, and Mrs. James B, Payne, Mr. and Mrs, John N. Faris, Liza, Ella,
Julin, John and Edge Faris, Miss Turie Smith, Mrs. Joe Suiherland, Mr. M. Y.
Sytherband, Mr, and Mrs. Andrew Gibson, and Mr. A, W, Rothwell,

These charier members held their first meetings in the old one room
public school building known as “Lochiel”, on the property now [called
“Rlanddemar Farm™). In those early days, Mr. 5. M. Page was the Sunday
School Superintendent and Mr. J. M. Faris was the teacher of the Bible Class.
Mr. J. K. Forrer taught the young adulis and Mrs, Henry Sutherland, the boys,



and Mrs, 5. M. Page, the younger children. Miss Berne Phillips was secretary
ond treasurer.  The only organ availoble was a uning fork, but the surmounding
wisnds rang with the melody of the old Gospel hymns.

Luter in the year, the group decided to undertake the building of o
Pouse of worship, Mr, J, M. Faris gave an acre of land adjoining his orchard as o
sile for the new church, Plans were made 1o mise the Tunds 1o stard the
construction. The first project was a lawn pany held in the woods adjoining the
church grounds, which was the home of Mr. and Mrs, C, E. Kidd. This event
was well patronized, people from miles around came, and the whole
neighborhood helped with donstions and kabor, The undertaking was a big
success financially, about $400,00 being cleared.  Another resull was the uniting
of the community behind the building program and the development of a spirit
of Christian felowship,

With this $400,00 in cash and small contributions from the members
pnd with grend faith that God would bring success, the actunl work on the
building was begun in the fall of 1902, The superintendent of construction was
Mr. J. W, Poyme, and much of the lobor, maderials, and the members contribuied
hauling. By the summer of 1903 the framework, roof, and weatherboarding
were i place; so, with rough hoard seats available, Sunday School was hebd in
the building. During that summer, another lown party was held on the church
grounds. This was a wonderful success, excoeding the first one and netting
S500.00, This was realized from the sales of food ot twenty-five cents per plise,

Gifts to the early church included a chandelier by Mrs, Beity Jo
Sutherlond, communion service and cloth by Mrs. J. K. Forrer, and pulpit chairs,
iable and rug by Mrs, 5. M. Page in memory of her son, Samuel,

Mrs. H. C. Phillips in the very beginning of the church organized the
Women's Missionary Society. She served as its futhful president all through
the years until her move from the community im 1917, This Socicty has kept the
misshonary fires buming in Mooreland during the entire life of the church,

About this time, the matter of forming a feld of churches, inchuding
Huordware, Covesyille, the newly constructed Alberene Church, and this yet un-
named church, was discussed and approved, moking possible the securing of o
pastor for the four churches,



It was not until the ffth Sunday in May that the church was given the name of
Mooreland and dedicated. Dr. W. E. Halcher preached the dedicatory sermon.
He was not only a dynamic speaker bt also & genius in money raising. At the
close of the service, cash and pledges were sufficient o liquidate the entire
indebledness of the chureh. Thia was a glorious day in the church's life.

The Field was mow sulficiently well organized 1o begin o scarch for a
suitable minister. In Awgust of 1904 o call was extended to Rev. Mr. B M.
Bowden, wls ot the time, was serving the church ot Princeton, West Virginea.
He accepted the call and came 1o begin his work in October of that year, Mo
parsonage being availnble, the Ficld rented the home near Covesyille, know as
the Coshy place, where Mr, and Mrs, Bowden and their two children lived until
the present parsonage was completed m 1906,

The choico of Mr. Bowden proved a happy one, as the church grew in
usefulness and numbers, The first summer of his ministiry be beld o revival m
which time many boys and girls were baptized who laier became pillars of the
church, When Mr. Bowden resigned in 1909 o accept a call to the Banon
Heights Chapel in Richmond, Rev. Mr. E. E. Lamb succeeded him. He and
Mrs. Lamb were faithful ministers, loved by all, Afler serving five years, Mr,
Lamb was succeeded by Rev. Mr. M. L. Bannister He and Mrs. Bannister were
young and enthusinstic, and i was during his ministry that the original Sunday
School rooms and boplistery were sdded.

Solorees in these earlier years were indeed small. The Field paid about
£720000 per year,

Rev. Mr. G, C. Duncan who served faithfully until 1919 followed M.
Bannister, He possessed the spiril of missionary zeal and he and his wife and
fomily ndded much to the church and commumnity.

Rev. Mr. Robert E, L, Aylor became our pasior in 1920, He wis a man
of strong convictions, an unusual scholar, and will always be remembered by his
beautiful prayers. Mrs. Aylor was a model preacher’s wife and her life among us
wis 8 benediction. Their large family of young people was valumble additions to

the neighborhood,

Our next postor was Rev, Mr. H, B. Swoncham. While his stay was
short, his sermons were masterly. His wife and children endeared themselves to
the whole commumity,



In 1'1'19,111:-:.Hr.R.i.Minm:mmﬂ'nmhispunuAmisutm
the Pastor of the University Church. This was his first pastorate and he
pu:mdndmwh&mhnmnfdlmtmidﬂﬂnfmmmmiw,r:gmﬂmnf
denominational ties. Under his direction and example of hard work, the
:MWMMMMHMMWMMMHWH:
present state of beaity. Apﬂpﬁulmmmtmwmm future
upkeep of this cemetery.

In IHIMr.M-mhm:glﬂhhhﬁd:mﬂuwmgtmdu}mpmmm
be all that a preacher could want in a wife, helping in all the problems of the
churches. His was the longest tenure of any of our pastors to this point,
extending over a period of eloven years,

Dr. Roy A. Helton succeeded Mr. Mann. This was his first pastorake,
also. He also brought his bride within his first year. Dr. Hebton was a real
scholar and a teacher of unusual talent and 0 man of boundless encry. His stay
was short, but his ministry was fruitful,

Next, the church had a series of supply pastors for 8 number of years.
For one year, Rev. Mr. ). E. Sandridge, (1l served the Field. And following him,
Dr. John W, Reams, an elderly saint and eloquent preacher, rendered a most
effective service.

When Brother Sandridge finished his Seminary course, he retumed to
us a5 the pastor of the Field. He proceeded to work with the young people and
succeeded in securing organizations of these young people in all the churches.
His fine sermons and engaging personality won the hearts of all the people.
After o year and half, he lefl 1o accept a call to o larger feld of service.

Mr. C. B. Blevins was here two years. Dr. Wesley Laing served as
interim pastor for o period of one year. His friendly attituce and excellent
sermons resailted in added interest and increased activity of the members.

By Ella N. Bowden, Historian

In 1952, Rev. A, M. Senter came to serve the Field. During his tenure,
all four of the churches added Sunday School rooms including Mooreland’s in
1955, Mre, Senter improved the music of the church along with her other
talents. She abso began many mission organizstions in the church, The church
prospered with 17 new additions during one revival. Mr and Mrs. Benter and



their six children stayed the longest, 16 years, and have always been spoken of
fondly.

Dr. Clyde Helms was interim pastor for a year until Rev. Edgar W.
Mitchell amived. Mr. Mitchell was instrumental in separating the Field of
churches. Mr. and Mrs. Mitchell and thelr five children were enjoyed by one
and all, Rev. Dennis Hamm served as interim pastor.  All loved his friendly
personality.

Rev, Michael Fowler and his family come i 1976, Mre, Fowler was
loveable and wonderful with her weekday Bible study. Mr. and Mrs. Fowler
and their 4 children, Jeff, Scott, Jason, and Amy, left o accepd a call from
Vesuvius Baptist Church, They were the last pastor’s family 1o live in the

[LHARA L ER I HA

In December of 1978, Rev, Ismel W, (Jake) Stewart became pastor of
Mooreland. He was n wonderful pastor and will be remembered for his
dedicated visiting. The church thrived during his stay with many new members.
Mrs. Stewart played the piano beautifully and added to the church in her own
wiy. He accepted a call from Free Union Baptist Clurch in September of 1981,
Jake was boved and we hated to sce him go.

By Virginia A, Page

Rev, B, Wertenbaker (Wertle) Tumner, Jr. and his family arrived
December 1, 1981, During his tenure, Mooreland joined with Trinity Uinited
Methodist in setting up a Food Wood Bank in the area.  Also, ceiling fans were
installed in the sanctunry and the Descon Family Ministry plan was
implemented. Wertie is now serving in Madison County,

Mr. James A, Sprouse left all his worldly possessions 1o the church and
cemetery on July 26, 1982,

On Avpust 1, 1986, Rev, lsael W, (Jake) Stewart retumed o
Mooreland. A cpsseite tape ministry was added in 1987, To aid in the prayer
life of the church, a prayer chain has been formed, Many memorials in memory
of church members and their families have added to the physical look of the
church building. New hymmnals, pew Bibles, loose pew cushions, new sancluary
lights, and a cross aver the altar have been added in the sanctuary. A new organ
and piano were added to the music program, along with choir robes given by



another church, Tb:pdwmsﬂdmlhuﬁuuldmmﬁnnuﬁnlmuh:
renovated and o vew fellowship hall could be added in 1992 Air conditioning
has been put into the entire church.

nﬁmmuhmmﬂmmmmﬁmwuhmmz. 1948 Lo
be dug up in fifty years. 1t is to be removed in the year 2038, The capsule has
many iems of historical and spiritual inerest.

The Women's Missionary Union has continued to thrive, Groups for
women (Baptist Women), girls (Girls in Action and Acteens), and children
{Mission Friends) are nvailable. Also, a boy's group {Royal Ambassadors) has
been added.

Members of Mooreland who have been appointedd missionaries are
Eumg:ﬂ-ﬂﬂﬂ'—HmmdFmigthﬁmﬂmnhqudﬂwﬁﬂmuhﬂhﬂnr
team was appointed from the Home Mission Board in 1992

Mooreland joins Trinity United Methodist in many activities, Each
year Easter services, Vacation Bible School, Thanksgiving services, and
Christmas services are shared, along with the continued work of the Food Bank.

By Jamie Chapman

Rev, Clarke Hawkins and his wife, Trish, came to Moorelnd in
October 1998, ‘They have two children. Joshun was borm on May 23, 1999, and
Campbell arrived on April 25, 2003, Under his leadership, Maooreland has:

A refurbished baptistry
Mew pews
Mew membert

Vibrant and active youth progmms:

I, Obder youth have: attended mission oriented camps, are learming American
Si;nlmgtngnhhtﬁuldnm&rlhrhutlﬂthu,mdm;mﬁngin
their Christian lives

2. Younger youth (Team Kids) have: Bible based activities and arc learning
about the Christian faith



3. Preschoolers (Mission Friends) are: leaming about missions pnd mre
leaming about the bowve of Christ

Community and Association sponsored minstries

Older membership is included in the many activities of Mooreland and has a key
role in encourngement and support of the youth and children runging lrom
prayer to simple supportive spoken words.

Continued giving to state, home and forcign missions

Also, during his tenure, on May 29, 2004 Clarke has received his
Doctor of Ministry degree from the Baplist Theologleal Seminary at Richmond

The ministries of Mooreland are the result of God's blessings and the
support, prayer, and encourngement of the membership.

By Ann Faris
It is the hope and prayer that Mooreland Baptist will continue to be
mission minded and to draw more people 1o a closer walk with God. The
mission of any church should be to bring more poople to mccept Christ os their
Savior and then nurture them in thelr growth with God, sharing Christ’s love.

By Jamie Chapan.





